CBOE Holdings, Inc. Form 424B5
December 12, 2016

Use these links to rapidly review the document

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Contents

Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(5) File No. 333-214488

MERGER PROPOSED YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT

Dear Stockholders:

CBOE Holdings, Inc. ("CBOE Holdings") and Bats Global Markets, Inc. ("Bats") have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 25, 2016 (as amended from time to time, the "merger agreement"), providing, among other things, that, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the merger agreement, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings will merge with and into Bats, with Bats surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings (the "merger").

If the merger is completed, each share of voting or non-voting Bats common stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (other than shares held by CBOE Holdings, Bats or any of their respective subsidiaries, shares held by any holder of Bats common stock who is entitled to demand and properly demands appraisal of such shares under Delaware law and unvested restricted shares of Bats common stock granted under any Bats equity incentive plan) will convert into, at the election of the holder of such share, subject to proration and adjustment, either (i) mixed consideration consisting of \$10.00 in cash and 0.3201 of a share of CBOE Holdings common stock, (ii) cash consideration consisting of an amount of cash equal to the sum, rounded to two decimal places, of (a) \$10.00 plus (b) the product of 0.3201 of a share of CBOE Holdings common stock multiplied by the volume-weighted average price, rounded to four decimal places, of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC ("NASDAQ") for the ten consecutive trading day period ending on the second full trading day prior to the effective time of the merger (the "closing CBOE Holdings VWAP") or (iii) stock consideration consisting of a number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock equal to the sum of (a) 0.3201 of a share of CBOE Holdings common stock and (b) the quotient, rounded to four decimal places, obtained by dividing \$10.00 by the closing CBOE Holdings VWAP. Holders of Bats common stock who do not make an election will receive the mixed consideration described in clause (i) above.

Based on the number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock and Bats common stock outstanding on December 9, 2016, the record date for the two companies' special meetings of stockholders, CBOE Holdings expects to issue or reserve for issuance approximately 31.9 million shares of CBOE Holdings common stock pursuant to the merger agreement (including shares of CBOE Holdings common stock issuable to Bats stockholders pursuant to the conversion of Bats stock options and Bats restricted shares). Based on these numbers, immediately following the completion of the merger, pre-existing CBOE Holdings stockholders and former Bats stockholders would own approximately 72% and 28% of the outstanding shares of CBOE Holdings common stock, respectively.

CBOE Holdings common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the trading symbol "CBOE." On December 9, 2016, CBOE Holdings common stock closed at \$76.68 per share as reported by NASDAQ.

The completion of the merger is subject to conditions, including CBOE Holdings stockholders approving the proposal to approve the issuance of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock pursuant to the merger agreement and Bats stockholders approving the proposal to adopt the merger agreement. The CBOE Holdings board of directors unanimously recommends that CBOE Holdings stockholders vote "FOR"

the proposal to approve the issuance of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock pursuant to the merger agreement. The Bats board of directors unanimously recommends that holders of Bats voting common stock vote "FOR" the proposal to adopt the merger agreement.

The proposals are being presented to the respective stockholders of each company at their special meetings. The dates, times and places of the meetings are as follows:

For CBOE Holdings stockholders: January 17, 2017, 11:00 a.m., local time, on the fourth floor of the Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated 400 South LaSalle Street Chicago, Illinois 60605 For Bats stockholders: January 17, 2017, 11:00 a.m., local time, at the corporate headquarters of Bats 8050 Marshall Drive, Suite 120 Lenexa, Kansas 66214

Your vote is very important. Whether or not you plan to attend your company's special meeting, please take the time to vote by completing and mailing the enclosed proxy card or voting instruction card or, if the option is available to you, by submitting your proxy electronically over the Internet or by telephone.

This joint proxy statement/prospectus contains important information about CBOE Holdings, Bats, the merger agreement, the proposed merger and the special meetings. We encourage you to read carefully this joint proxy statement/prospectus before voting, including the section entitled "Risk Factors" beginning on page 42.

Sincerely,

Edward T. Tilly Chief Executive Officer CBOE Holdings, Inc. Chris Concannon Chief Executive Officer and President Bats Global Markets, Inc.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state or provincial securities regulator has approved or disapproved of the proposed transactions described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus or the securities to be issued pursuant to the merger agreement or determined if the information contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus is accurate or adequate. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This joint proxy statement/prospectus is dated December 9, 2016, and is being mailed to CBOE Holdings stockholders and Bats stockholders on or about December 12, 2016.

CBOE HOLDINGS, INC.

400 South LaSalle Street Chicago, Illinois 60605

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TO BE HELD ON JANUARY 17, 2017

To the Stockholders of CBOE Holdings, Inc. ("CBOE Holdings"):

CBOE Holdings will hold a special meeting of stockholders of CBOE Holdings on the fourth floor of the Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated, at 400 South LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois, 60605, on January 17, 2017, at 11:00 a.m., local time, for the following purposes:

- 1. To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the issuance of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 25, 2016, by and among CBOE Holdings, two wholly-owned subsidiaries of CBOE Holdings and Bats Global Markets, Inc. (the "share issuance proposal").
- 2. To consider and vote upon a proposal to adjourn the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, including to permit further solicitation of proxies in favor of the share issuance proposal if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the share issuance proposal (the "CBOE Holdings meeting adjournment proposal").
- 3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournments or postponements of the special meeting.

The board of directors of CBOE Holdings (the "CBOE Holdings board") has fixed the close of business on December 9, 2016 as the record date for the determination of the stockholders of CBOE Holdings entitled to receive notice of and vote at the CBOE Holdings special meeting. Only CBOE Holdings stockholders of record at the close of business on the record date for the CBOE Holdings special meeting are entitled to notice of and to vote at the CBOE Holdings special meeting and any adjournments or postponements of the CBOE Holdings special meeting.

The CBOE Holdings board unanimously recommends that you vote "FOR" the share issuance proposal and "FOR" the CBOE Holdings meeting adjournment proposal.

Your vote is very important. We cannot complete the merger described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus unless we receive the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the shares of common stock properly cast at the special meeting on the share issuance proposal. It is important that your shares be represented and voted whether or not you plan to attend the CBOE Holdings special meeting in person. Instructions regarding the different methods for voting your shares are provided under the section entitled "Questions and Answers about the Special Meetings of CBOE Holdings Stockholders and Bats Stockholders."

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Joanne Moffic-Silver Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary CBOE Holdings, Inc.

BATS GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.

8050 Marshall Drive, Suite 120 Lenexa, Kansas 66214

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON JANUARY 17, 2017

To the Stockholders of Bats Global Markets, Inc. ("Bats"):

Bats will hold a special meeting of stockholders of Bats at the corporate headquarters of Bats, located at 8050 Marshall Drive, Suite 120, Lenexa, Kansas 66214, on January 17, 2017, at 11:00 a.m., local time, for the following purposes:

- 1. To consider and vote upon a proposal to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 25, 2016 (as amended from time to time, the "*merger agreement*"), by and among CBOE Holdings, Inc. ("*CBOE Holdings*"), two wholly-owned subsidiaries of CBOE Holdings and Bats.
- 2. To consider and vote on a proposal to approve, by a non-binding advisory vote, certain compensation that may be paid or become payable to Bats' named executive officers that is based on or otherwise relates to the merger contemplated by the merger agreement (the "non-binding compensation advisory proposal").
- 3. To consider and vote upon a proposal to adjourn the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, including to permit further solicitation of proxies in favor of the proposal to adopt the merger agreement if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the proposal to adopt the merger agreement (the "Bats meeting adjournment proposal").
- 4. To transact such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournments or postponements of the special meeting.

The board of directors of Bats (the "*Bats board*") has fixed the close of business on December 9, 2016 as the record date for the determination of the stockholders of Bats entitled to receive notice of the Bats special meeting. Only Bats stockholders of record at the close of business on the record date for the Bats special meeting are entitled to notice of the Bats special meeting and any adjournment or postponements of the Bats special meeting. Only holders of record of Bats voting common stock at the close of business on the record date for the Bats special meeting are entitled to vote at the Bats special meeting and any adjournment or postponements of the Bats special meeting.

The Bats board unanimously recommends that holders of Bats voting common stock vote "FOR" the proposal to adopt the merger agreement, "FOR" the non-binding compensation advisory proposal and "FOR" the Bats meeting adjournment proposal.

As holders of voting common stock, your vote is very important. Under Delaware law, we cannot complete the merger described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus unless the proposal to adopt the merger agreement receives the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Bats common stock entitled to vote on the proposal to adopt the merger agreement at the special meeting. If you abstain from voting or fail to vote, it will have the same effect as voting "AGAINST" the proposal to adopt the merger agreement.

It is important that your shares be represented and voted whether or not you plan to attend the Bats special meeting in person. Instructions regarding the different methods for voting your shares are provided under the section entitled "Questions and Answers about the Special Meetings of CBOE Holdings Stockholders and Bats Stockholders."

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Eric Swanson
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary
Bats Global Markets, Inc.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	1
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SPECIAL MEETINGS OF CBOE HOLDINGS STOCKHOLDERS AND BATS	
<u>STOCKHOLDERS</u>	<u>5</u>
<u>SUMMARY</u>	<u>15</u>
<u>Information about the Companies</u>	<u>15</u>
The Merger	<u>16</u>
Merger Consideration	<u>17</u>
Treatment of Bats Equity Awards	18
Ownership of CBOE Holdings after the Merger	<u>18</u>
Share Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers	<u> 19</u>
Recommendation of the CBOE Holdings Board and Its Reasons for the Merger	18 19 19 19
Recommendation of the Bats Board and Its Reasons for the Merger	<u>19</u>
Opinions of Financial Advisors	<u>19</u>
Interests of Bats' Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger	<u>21</u>
Board of Directors of CBOE Holdings after the Merger	<u>21</u>
Listing of CBOE Holdings Common Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Bats Common Stock	<u>22</u>
Bats Stockholder Appraisal Rights	<u>22</u>
Conditions to Completion of the Merger	<u>22</u>
Regulatory Approvals	24
Debt Financing	<u>24</u>
Bats Acquisition Proposals	24 25
CBOE Holdings Acquisition Proposals	<u>25</u>
Termination of the Merger Agreement	<u>26</u>
Termination Fees and Expenses	<u>28</u>
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences	<u>28</u>
Accounting Treatment	<u>28</u>
Risk Factors	<u>28</u>
CBOE Holdings' Dividend Policy	<u>29</u>
Comparison of Rights of CBOE Holdings Stockholders and Bats Stockholders	<u>29</u>
<u>Expenses</u>	29 29 30
Summary Selected Historical Financial Data for CBOE Holdings	<u>30</u>
Summary Selected Historical Financial Data for Bats	<u>32</u>
Summary Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information	<u>36</u>
<u>Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Per Share Information</u>	<u>38</u>
Comparative Per Share Market Price Data and Dividend Information	<u>40</u>
RISK FACTORS	<u>42</u>
Risks Relating to the Merger and the Combined Company	<u>42</u>
Risks Relating to CBOE Holdings	<u>53</u>
Risks Relating to Bats	<u>53</u>
THE CBOE HOLDINGS SPECIAL MEETING	<u>79</u>
<u>General</u>	<u>79</u>
Date, Time, Place and Purpose of the CBOE Holdings Special Meeting	<u>79</u>
Recommendation of the CBOE Holdings Board	53 53 79 79 79 79
Record Date; Outstanding Shares; Shares Entitled to Vote	<u>79</u>
Quorum and Vote Required	<u>79</u>
Voting by CBOE Holdings' Directors and Executive Officers	<u>80</u>
Voting; Proxies; Revocation	<u>80</u>
Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes	<u>82</u>

Proxy Solicitation	<u>83</u>
Other Business; Adjournments	<u>83</u>
Assistance	<u>83</u>
THE BATS SPECIAL MEETING	<u>84</u>
<u>General</u>	<u>84</u>
Date, Time, Place and Purpose of the Bats Special Meeting	<u>84</u>
Recommendation of the Bats Board	<u>84</u>
Record Date; Outstanding Shares; Shares Entitled to Vote	<u>84</u>
Quorum and Vote Required	<u>85</u>
Voting by Bats' Directors and Executive Officers	<u>85</u>
Voting; Proxies; Revocation	<u>85</u>
Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes	<u>87</u>
Proxy Solicitation	88
Other Business; Adjournments	88
Assistance	88
CBOE HOLDINGS PROPOSAL 1: SHARE ISSUANCE PROPOSAL	<u>89</u>
CBOE HOLDINGS PROPOSAL 2: MEETING ADJOURNMENT PROPOSAL	<u>90</u>
BATS PROPOSAL 1: ADOPTION OF THE MERGER AGREEMENT	91
BATS PROPOSAL 2: NON-BINDING COMPENSATION ADVISORY PROPOSAL	92
BATS PROPOSAL 3: MEETING ADJOURNMENT PROPOSAL	93
THE MERGER	94
General	94
Background of the Merger	94
Recommendation of the CBOE Holdings Board and Its Reasons for the Merger	110
Recommendation of the Bats Board and Its Reasons for the Merger	115
Opinions of CBOE Holdings' Co-Lead Financial Advisors	121
Opinion of Bats' Financial Advisor	143
CBOE Holdings' Dividend Policy	154
Regulatory Approvals	154
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences	156
Listing of CBOE Holdings Common Stock	160
Bats Stockholder Appraisal Rights	160
Delisting and Deregistration of Bats Common Stock	164
Restrictions on Sales of Shares of CBOE Holdings Common Stock Received in the Merger	164
Interests of Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger	165
Board of Directors of CBOE Holdings after the Merger	174
THE MERGER AGREEMENT	175
Structure and Completion of the Merger	175
Merger Consideration	176
Allocation of Merger Consideration and Illustrative Elections and Calculations	178
Manner and Procedure for Exchanging Shares of Bats Common Stock; No Fractional Shares	182
Election Procedures	183
Treatment of Equity Awards	184
Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares	184
Termination of Exchange Fund	185
No Liability	185 185
Bats Stockholder Appraisal Rights	
Conditions to Completion of the Merger	185 186
Definition of Material Adverse Effect	<u>186</u> 188
Bats Acquisition Proposals	188 190
CBOE Holdings Acquisition Proposals	190 193
CBOE Holdings Acquisition Proposals ii	<u>193</u>
п	

Special Meeting of Bats Stockholders; Recommendation of the Bats Board	196
Special Meeting of CBOE Holdings Stockholders; Recommendation of the CBOE Holdings Board	198
Efforts to Complete the Merger	200
Conduct of Business Pending the Merger	202
Employee Matters	208
Board of Directors of CBOE Holdings After the Merger	209
Financing	209
Other Covenants and Agreements	214
Director and Officer Indemnification	215
Termination of the Merger Agreement	216
Representations and Warranties	220
Expenses	222
Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Specific Enforcement; Waiver of Jury Trial	222
Amendments, Extensions and Waivers	222
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT FINANCING	224
Overview	224
Interest Rate; Duration Fee	224
Prepayments and Redemptions	<u>225</u>
Collateral and Guarantors	225
Conditions Precedent	226
Covenants and Events of Default	<u>226</u>
INFORMATION ABOUT CBOE HOLDINGS, MERGER SUB AND MERGER LLC	<u>227</u>
CBOE Holdings	227
Merger Sub	227
Merger LLC	227
INFORMATION ABOUT BATS	228
Business	<u>228</u>
Facilities	253
Legal Proceedings	<u>254</u>
Regulation Regulation	<u>255</u>
Management	<u>268</u>
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	<u>271</u>
Director Compensation	287
Risk Analysis of Compensation Program	289
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation	289
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions	289
BATS MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS	2 92
Overview	292
History	294
Business Segments	295
Significant Recent Transactions Affecting Bats' Results of Operations	295
Acquisition Synergies	297
Bats' Model	298
Factors Affecting Results of Operations	2 99
Components of Revenues	300
Components of Cost of Revenues	303
Components of Operating Expenses	303
Results of Operations	305 305
Comparison of Nine Months Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015	306
iii	

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014	<u>322</u>
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013	<u>338</u>
Quarterly Results of Operations	<u>351</u>
<u>Seasonality</u>	<u>353</u>
Liquidity and Capital Resources	<u>353</u>
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements	<u>358</u>
<u>Guarantees</u>	<u>358</u>
Critical Accounting Policies	<u>358</u>
BATS QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK	<u>363</u>
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT OF CBOE HOLDINGS	<u>367</u>
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT OF BATS	<u>369</u>
DESCRIPTION OF CBOE HOLDINGS CAPITAL STOCK	<u>372</u>
Common Stock	<u>372</u>
Preferred Stock	<u>373</u>
Ownership and Voting Limits on CBOE Holdings Common Stock	<u>373</u>
Other Provisions	<u>375</u>
Business Combinations with Interested Stockholders	<u>376</u>
<u>Limitations on Liability and Indemnification of Officers and Directors</u>	<u>376</u>
COMPARISON OF RIGHTS OF CBOE HOLDINGS STOCKHOLDERS AND BATS STOCKHOLDERS	<u>377</u>
CBOE HOLDINGS TRADING PRICE AND VOLUME	<u>397</u>
CBOE HOLDINGS, INC. AND BATS GLOBAL MARKETS, INC. UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED	
<u>FINANCIAL STATEMENTS</u>	<u>398</u>
CERTAIN UNAUDITED PROSPECTIVE FINANCIAL INFORMATION	<u>412</u>
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS	<u>421</u>
CBOE Holdings	<u>421</u>
Bats Control of the C	<u>421</u>
<u>LEGAL MATTERS</u>	<u>421</u>
<u>EXPERTS</u>	<u>421</u>
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	<u>422</u>
<u>DEFINED TERMS</u>	<u>424</u>
TRADEMARK INFORMATION	<u>426</u>
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	<u>F-1</u>
Annex A Agreement and Plan of Merger	
	<u>A-1</u>
Annex B Opinion of Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated	<u>B-1</u>
Annex C Opinion of Broadhaven Capital Partners, LLC	<u>C-1</u>
Annex D Opinion of Barclays Capital Inc.	<u>D-1</u>
Annex E Section 262 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware	<u>E-1</u>
iv	

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This joint proxy statement/prospectus contains certain statements regarding intentions, beliefs and expectations or predictions for the future of CBOE Holdings, Inc. ("CBOE Holdings") and/or Bats Global Markets, Inc. ("Bats," and collectively with CBOE Holdings, "we," "us," and "our"), which are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Such statements include, without limitation, statements with respect to the anticipated effects of the proposed transaction, expectations with respect to the migration of trading technology and synergies, the proposed transaction's anticipated benefits to our customers and stockholders, the anticipated timing of the closing of the proposed transaction, plans with respect to the leadership of the combined company following the closing of the merger (as defined below), CBOE Holdings' intention to pay dividends, other anticipated benefits of the proposed transaction, future financial and operating results, and the plans, objectives, expectations and intentions with respect to the combined company. These statements are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause our actual results, performance, prospects or opportunities, as well as those of the markets we serve or intend to serve, to differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, these statements. You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate to matters of a strictly factual or historical nature and generally discuss or relate to forecasts, estimates or other expectations regarding future events. Generally, the words "believe," "expect," "intend," "estimate," "anticipate," "project," "project," "potential," "continue," "plan," "seek," "may," "could," "should," "might," "will" and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. However, the absence of these words or similar expression

With respect to the proposed transaction, the risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results, performance, prospects or opportunities to differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, forward-looking statements include, without limitation:

failure of the combined company to realize all of the anticipated benefits of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement (as defined on page 5) at all or in the anticipated timeframe;

a failure to integrate successfully or a material disruption in information technology systems;

failure to complete the merger if CBOE Holdings' financing for the merger (as defined on page 5) becomes unavailable;

changes to the anticipated terms of debt financing in connection with the merger;

a decrease CBOE Holdings' business flexibility in connection with the incurrence of indebtedness by CBOE Holdings to finance the merger;

increases to CBOE Holdings' borrowing costs due to a deterioration in its credit profile;

changes to the value of the merger consideration to be received by Bats stockholders pursuant to the merger agreement as a result of changes in the price of CBOE Holdings common stock;

failure of the combined company to manage its growth;

1

Table of Contents

failure by the combined company to retain and motivate key employees;

inability of the combined company to retain and recruit qualified employees in sufficient numbers;

failure to receive regulatory clearances and approvals at all or within anticipated timeframes or the imposition by regulatory authorities of conditions that are not presently anticipated or that cannot be met;

changes to the board of directors and management of the combined company that may affect the strategy of the combined company as compared to that of CBOE Holdings and Bats;

failure by entities who are affiliates of Bats' significant stockholders to continue to generate revenue or provide liquidity and other services at current levels after the completion of the merger;

the potential impairment of the goodwill and intangible assets that the combined company will record;

effects on the market price of the common stock of the combined company of factors different from those affecting the market price for shares of Bats common stock or for shares of CBOE Holdings common stock;

the substantial reduction of the percentage ownership interests of pre-existing CBOE Holdings stockholders due to the issuance of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock to Bats stockholders pursuant to the merger agreement;

the effect of the merger agreement provisions that may discourage other companies from trying to acquire Bats for a value greater than the merger consideration or from trying to acquire CBOE Holdings;

failure to complete the merger could negatively impact the stock prices and future businesses and financial results of CBOE Holdings and Bats;

the fact that the combined company will indirectly hold 100% of the issued share capital and voting rights in Bats Trading Limited and its subsidiary, Chi-X Europe Limited and as a result, any person who holds, or has voting power with respect to, 10% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock of CBOE Holdings following the effective time of the merger, will be subject to certain regulatory requirements under United Kingdom law;

the significant transaction and integration costs that CBOE Holdings and Bats will incur in connection with the merger;

negative effects on the market price of CBOE Holdings common stock following the merger is not accretive and causes dilution to the combined company's earnings per share; and

legal proceedings that may be instituted against CBOE Holdings and Bats following announcement of the proposed transaction.

Table of Contents

with respect to CBOE Holdings, Bats and the combined company, such risks, uncertainties and other factors include, among other things:

the loss of rights to exclusively list and trade certain index options and futures products;

economic, political and market conditions;

compliance with legal and regulatory obligations (and changes thereto), including obligations under agreements with regulatory agencies and potential conflicts between self-regulatory responsibilities and for-profit status;

increasing competition in the industries in which CBOE Holdings and Bats operate;

CBOE Holdings' and Bats' ability to operate their respective businesses without violating the intellectual property rights of others and the costs associated with protecting their respective intellectual property rights;

decreases in trading volumes or a shift in the mix of products traded on CBOE Holdings' or Bats' exchanges;

each of CBOE Holdings' and Bats' ability to accommodate trading volume and transaction traffic, including significant increases, without failure or degradation of performance of their respective systems;

CBOE Holdings' and Bats' ability to protect their respective systems and communication networks from security risks and breaches;

the ability to manage CBOE Holdings' and Bats' growth and strategic acquisitions or alliances effectively, including the ability to realize the anticipated benefits of past acquisitions;

the ability to adapt successfully to technological changes to meet customers' needs and developments in the marketplace;

the impact of legal and regulatory changes and proceedings, whether or not related to the proposed transaction;

increasing competition by foreign and domestic entities;

dependence on third-party service providers;

index providers' ability to perform under their agreements;

the ability to maintain access and market data fee revenues;

the ability of the companies' risk management methods to effectively monitor and manage risks; and

the ability to attract and retain skilled management and other personnel.

Table of Contents

Additional risks, uncertainties and other factors include those discussed under the heading "Risk Factors" and in documents incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus or, in the case of documents incorporated by reference, as of the date of those documents. Neither CBOE Holdings nor Bats undertakes, and each of them expressly disclaims, any duty to update any forward-looking statement whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

4

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SPECIAL MEETINGS OF CBOE HOLDINGS STOCKHOLDERS AND BATS STOCKHOLDERS

The following are some questions that you, as a stockholder of CBOE Holdings or a stockholder of Bats, may have regarding the special meeting of CBOE Holdings stockholders, which we refer to as the "CBOE Holdings special meeting," or the special meeting of Bats stockholders, which we refer to as the "Bats special meeting," and brief answers to those questions. For more detailed information about the matters discussed in these questions and answers, see "The CBOE Holdings Special Meeting" and "The Bats Special Meeting." CBOE Holdings and Bats encourage you to read carefully the remainder of this joint proxy statement/prospectus because the information in this section does not provide all of the information that might be important to you with respect to the matters being considered at the CBOE Holdings special meeting or the Bats special meeting. Additional important information is also contained in the Annexes to and in the documents incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

Q:

Q: Why am I receiving this joint proxy statement/prospectus?

A:

The CBOE Holdings and Bats boards of directors are using this joint proxy statement/prospectus to solicit proxies of CBOE Holdings stockholders and Bats stockholders pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 25, 2016 (as amended from time to time, the "merger agreement"), by and among CBOE Holdings, two wholly-owned subsidiaries of CBOE Holdings and Bats, providing, among other things, that, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the merger agreement, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings will merge with and into Bats, with Bats surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings (the "merger"). The merger agreement also provides that, immediately following the effective time of the merger, Bats, as the surviving corporation in the merger, will merge with and into CBOE V, LLC ("Merger LLC") with Merger LLC surviving the subsequent merger (the "subsequent merger").

In addition, this joint proxy statement/prospectus is a prospectus for Bats stockholders because CBOE Holdings is offering shares of its common stock to be issued in exchange for shares of Bats common stock in the merger, at the election of Bats stockholders.

In order to complete the merger, CBOE Holdings stockholders must approve the issuance of new shares of CBOE Holdings common stock pursuant to the merger agreement and Bats stockholders must adopt the merger agreement.

CBOE Holdings and Bats will hold separate special meetings of stockholders to obtain these approvals. This joint proxy statement/prospectus contains important information about the merger agreement, the merger and the special meetings of the CBOE Holdings and Bats stockholders, and you should read it carefully. The enclosed voting materials allow you to vote your shares without attending your respective meeting in person.

Your vote is important. We encourage you to vote as soon as possible.

Q:

Q: What are Bats stockholders entitled to receive in the merger?

A:

If the merger is completed, each share of voting or non-voting Bats common stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (other than shares held by CBOE Holdings, Bats or any of their respective subsidiaries, shares held by any holder of Bats common stock who is entitled to demand and properly demands appraisal of such shares under Delaware law and unvested restricted shares of Bats common stock granted under any Bats equity incentive plan, which are discussed under "The Merger Interests of Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger Bats Directors and Executive Officers Treatment of Bats Equity Awards") will convert into, at the election of the holder of such share, subject to proration and adjustment, either

Table of Contents

Q:

A:

Q:

A:

Q:

A:

(i) "mixed consideration," which consists of \$10.00 in cash and 0.3201 of a share of CBOE Holdings common stock, (ii) "cash consideration," which consists of an amount of cash equal to the sum, rounded to two decimal places, of (a) \$10.00 plus (b) the product of 0.3201 of a share of CBOE Holdings common stock multiplied by the volume-weighted average price, rounded to four decimal places, of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC ("NASDAQ") for the ten consecutive trading day period ending on the second full trading day prior to the effective time of the merger (the "closing CBOE Holdings VWAP") or (iii) "stock consideration," which consists of a number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock equal to the sum of (a) 0.3201 of a share of CBOE Holdings common stock and (b) the quotient obtained by dividing \$10.00 by the closing CBOE Holdings VWAP (such sum, the "exchange ratio"). Holders of voting and non-voting Bats common stock who do not make an election will receive the mixed consideration. The shares of CBOE Holdings common stock to be issued and cash payable upon conversion of shares of Bats common stock in the merger, and cash paid in lieu of the issuance of fractional shares of CBOE Common Stock, are referred to collectively as the "merger consideration."

Q: When and where will the special meetings of the CBOE Holdings stockholders and Bats stockholders be held?

The CBOE Holdings special meeting will take place on January 17, 2017, at 11:00 a.m., local time, on the fourth floor of the Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated, at 400 South LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois, 60605.

The Bats special meeting will take place on January 17, 2017, at 11:00 a.m., local time, at the corporate headquarters of Bats: 8050 Marshall Drive, Suite 120, Lenexa, Kansas 66214.

Q: What are CBOE Holdings stockholders voting to approve, and why is this approval necessary?

CBOE Holdings stockholders are voting on a proposal to approve the issuance of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock pursuant to the merger agreement. The approval by CBOE Holdings stockholders of this proposal, which we refer to as the "share issuance proposal," is required by the listing requirements of NASDAQ, and is a condition to the completion of the merger. Based on the number of shares of Bats common stock and Bats equity awards expected to be outstanding as of the effective time of the merger, CBOE Holdings expects to issue up to approximately 31.9 million shares of CBOE Holdings common stock pursuant to the merger agreement.

CBOE Holdings stockholders are also voting on a proposal to adjourn the CBOE Holdings special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, including to permit further solicitation of proxies in favor of the share issuance proposal if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the share issuance proposal. The approval by CBOE Holdings stockholders of this proposal, which we refer to as the "CBOE Holdings meeting adjournment proposal," is not a condition to the completion of the merger.

What are Bats stockholders voting to approve and why is this approval necessary?

The holders of Bats voting common stock are voting on a proposal to adopt the merger agreement. The approval by Bats stockholders of this proposal is required by Delaware law to complete the merger and is a condition to the completion of the merger.

Under Section 14A of the Exchange Act, which was enacted as part of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 ("*Dodd-Frank*"), Bats is required to provide its stockholders the opportunity to vote to approve, by a non-binding advisory vote, certain compensation that may be paid or become payable to Bats' named executive officers that is based on or otherwise relates to the merger. Accordingly, Bats stockholders are being provided with the

Table of Contents

A:

A:

opportunity to cast an advisory vote on such payments. The approval by Bats stockholders of this proposal, which we refer to as the "non-binding compensation advisory proposal," is not a condition to the completion of the merger.

Bats stockholders are also voting on a proposal to adjourn the Bats special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, including to permit further solicitation of proxies in favor of the proposal to adopt the merger agreement if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the proposal to adopt the merger agreement. The approval by Bats stockholders of this proposal, which we refer to as the "Bats meeting adjournment proposal," is not a condition to the completion of the merger.

Q: Who can attend and vote at the special meetings?

Only holders of record of CBOE Holdings common stock at the close of business on December 9, 2016, which we refer to as the "CBOE Holdings record date," are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the CBOE Holdings special meeting. As of the CBOE Holdings record date, there were 81,305,860 shares of CBOE Holdings common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the CBOE Holdings special meeting (including 20,553 unvested restricted shares of CBOE Holdings common stock), held by approximately 147 holders of record. Each holder of CBOE Holdings common stock is entitled to one vote for each share of CBOE Holdings common stock owned as of the CBOE Holdings record date.

Only holders of record of Bats common stock at the close of business on December 9, 2016, which we refer to as the "Bats record date," are entitled to notice of the Bats special meeting. Only holders of record of Bats voting common stock on the Bats record date are entitled to vote at the Bats special meeting. As of the Bats record date, there were 94,132,195 shares of Bats voting common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Bats special meeting (including 1,305,665 unvested restricted shares of Bats common stock), held by approximately 124 holders of record. Each holder of Bats voting common stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Bats voting common stock owned as of the Bats record date.

Q: What do I need to do to attend the special meetings?

Attendance at the CBOE Holdings special meeting and the Bats special meeting is generally limited to the stockholders of each respective company and their authorized representatives. All CBOE Holdings stockholders and Bats stockholders must bring an acceptable form of identification, such as a driver's license, in order to attend the applicable special meeting in person.

In addition, if you hold shares of CBOE common stock or Bats common stock in street name and would like to attend the applicable special meeting, you will need to bring an account statement or other acceptable evidence of ownership of shares as of the close of business on December 9, 2016, the record date for the special meetings. If you hold shares in street name and you want to vote your shares in person at the CBOE Holdings special meeting or the Bats special meeting, you must bring a legal proxy signed by your bank, broker, trust or other nominee to the applicable special meeting.

Any representative of a stockholder who wishes to attend the CBOE Holdings special meeting or the Bats special meeting must present acceptable documentation evidencing his or her authority, acceptable evidence of ownership by the stockholder of CBOE Holdings or Bats common stock, as applicable, and an acceptable form of identification. CBOE Holdings and Bats each reserve the right to limit the number of representatives of any stockholder who may attend the CBOE Holdings special meeting or the Bats special meeting, as applicable.

Table of Contents

Α:

A:

If you plan to attend the CBOE Holdings special meeting or the Bats special meeting, please provide adequate time to pass through the security process necessary to gain access to the meeting room.

- Q: What vote of CBOE Holdings stockholders is required to approve the share issuance proposal and the CBOE Holdings meeting adjournment proposal?
- A:

 The approval by CBOE Holdings stockholders of the share issuance proposal and the approval of the CBOE Holdings meeting adjournment proposal require the affirmative vote of the majority of the votes properly cast on such proposal, provided that a quorum is present.
- Q:
 What vote of Bats stockholders is required to approve the proposal to adopt the merger agreement, non-binding compensation advisory proposal and the Bats meeting adjournment proposal?
- A:

 The approval by Bats stockholders of the proposal to adopt the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Bats common stock entitled to vote on the proposal at the Bats special meeting. The approval of the non-binding compensation advisory proposal and the approval of the Bats meeting adjournment proposal require, in each case, the affirmative vote of the majority of the votes properly cast on the proposal at the Bats special meeting, provided that a quorum is present.
- Q: How does the CBOE Holdings board of directors recommend that CBOE Holdings stockholders vote?
- A:

 The CBOE Holdings board of directors (the "CBOE Holdings board") unanimously recommends that CBOE Holdings stockholders vote "FOR" the share issuance proposal and "FOR" the CBOE Holdings meeting adjournment proposal.
- Q:

 How does the Bats board of directors recommend that Bats stockholders vote?
- The Bats board of directors (the "*Bats board*") unanimously recommends that Bats stockholders vote "FOR" the proposal to adopt the merger agreement, "FOR" the non-binding compensation advisory proposal and "FOR" the Bats meeting adjournment proposal.
- Q: What should CBOE Holdings stockholders and Bats stockholders do now in order to vote on the proposals being considered at their company's special meeting?
- Stockholders of record of CBOE Holdings as of the CBOE Holdings record date and stockholders of record of Bats as of the Bats record date who hold shares of Bats voting common stock may submit their proxy by:

completing, signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card in the accompanying pre-addressed postage-paid envelope;

calling the toll-free number specified on the enclosed proxy card; or

accessing the Internet website specified on the enclosed proxy card.

Both companies strongly encourage stockholders of record to vote using the enclosed proxy card.

If you hold CBOE Holdings common stock or shares of Bats voting common stock in "street name," which means your shares are held of record by a bank, broker, trust or other nominee, you must provide the record holder of your shares with instructions on how to vote your shares. Please refer to the voting instruction card used by your bank, broker, trust or other nominee to see if you may submit voting instructions using the Internet or telephone.

Table of Contents

A:

Holders of CBOE Holdings common stock or Bats voting common stock may also vote in person by attending the applicable company's special meeting. If you plan to attend your company's special meeting and wish to vote in person, you will be given a ballot at the special meeting. Please note, however, that if your shares are held in "street name," and you wish to vote in person at your company's special meeting, you must bring a legal proxy, executed in your favor, from the record holder of the shares authorizing you to vote at the special meeting. Whether or not you plan to attend your company's special meeting, you are encouraged to vote your shares by proxy as described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

Q: What will happen if I abstain from voting, fail to vote or do not direct how to vote on my proxy?

If holders of CBOE Holdings common stock or Bats voting common stock do not vote or fail to instruct such stockholder's bank, broker, trust or other nominee to vote if such stockholder's shares are held in "street name," it may have a negative effect on the ability of CBOE Holdings or Bats, as applicable, to obtain the number of votes necessary for approval of their respective proposals.

For purposes of the CBOE Holdings stockholder vote:

Each of the share issuance proposal and the CBOE Holdings meeting adjournment proposal require the affirmative vote of the majority of the votes properly cast on such proposal, provided that a quorum is present. Consequently, an abstention from voting on either of these proposals will not have any effect on these proposals. In addition, even if a quorum is not present at the CBOE Holdings special meeting, the affirmative vote of shares representing a majority in voting power of the shares present in person or represented by proxy at the special meeting entitled to vote on such matter may adjourn the meeting to another place, date or time. In this case, an abstention from voting will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the proposal to adjourn the meeting due to an absence of a quorum. An officer entitled to preside at or to act as secretary of the CBOE Holdings special meeting is also entitled to adjourn the meeting to another place, date or time if a quorum is not present.

The failure of a CBOE Holdings stockholder to vote or to instruct such stockholder's bank, broker, trust or other nominee to vote if such stockholder's shares are held in "street name" will also not affect the results of the share issuance proposal or the CBOE Holdings meeting adjournment proposal. However, such shares would not be counted as present for the purpose of establishing a quorum at the special meeting.

All properly submitted proxies received by CBOE Holdings before the CBOE Holdings special meeting that are not revoked or changed prior to being exercised at the CBOE Holdings special meeting will be voted at the CBOE Holdings special meeting in accordance with the instructions indicated on the proxies or, if no instructions were provided, "FOR" the share issuance proposal and "FOR" the CBOE Holdings meeting adjournment proposal.

For purposes of the Bats stockholder vote:

The proposal to adopt the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Bats common stock entitled to vote on the proposal at the Bats special meeting. Therefore, a stockholder's abstention from voting or failure to vote, or to instruct such stockholder's bank, broker, trust or other nominee to vote if such stockholder's shares are held in "street name," will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the proposal to adopt the merger agreement.

Each of the non-binding compensation advisory proposal and the Bats meeting adjournment proposal require the affirmative vote of the majority of the votes properly cast on such proposal, provided that a quorum is present. Consequently, an abstention from voting on either of these proposals will not have any effect on these proposals. In addition, even if a quorum is not

Table of Contents

present at the Bats special meeting, the affirmative vote of shares representing a majority of the voting power of the shares present in person or represented by proxy at the special meeting entitled to vote on such matter may adjourn the meeting to another place, date or time. In this case, an abstention from voting will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the proposal to adjourn the meeting due to an absence of a quorum. The chairman of the Bats special meeting is also entitled to adjourn the meeting to another place, date or time if a quorum is not present.

The failure of a Bats stockholder to vote or to instruct such stockholder's bank, broker, trust or other nominee to vote if such stockholder's shares are held in "street name" will also not affect the results of the non-binding compensation advisory proposal or the Bats meeting adjournment proposal. However, such shares would not be counted as present for the purpose of establishing a quorum at the special meeting.

All properly submitted proxies received by Bats before the Bats special meeting that are not revoked or changed prior to being exercised at the Bats special meeting will be voted at the Bats special meeting in accordance with the instructions indicated on the proxies or, if no instructions were provided, "FOR" the proposal to adopt the merger agreement, "FOR" the non-binding compensation advisory proposal and "FOR" the Bats meeting adjournment proposal.

Q: Will there be any broker non-votes?

A:

Under applicable stock exchange rules, all of the proposals in this joint proxy statement/prospectus are non-routine matters, so there can be no broker non-votes at the special meeting. A broker non-vote occurs when shares held by a bank, broker, trust or other nominee are represented at a meeting, but the bank, broker, trust or other nominee has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner and does not have the discretion to direct the voting of the shares on a particular proposal but has discretionary voting

power on other proposals at such meeting. Accordingly, if your shares of CBOE Holdings common stock or Bats voting common stock are held in "street name," your bank, broker, trust or other nominee will NOT be able to vote your shares of CBOE Holdings common stock or Bats voting common stock on any of the proposals, and your shares will not be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at the applicable special meeting unless you have properly instructed your bank, broker, trust or other nominee on how to vote. Because the proposal to Bats stockholders to adopt the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Bats common stock entitled to vote on the proposal at the Bats special meeting, the failure of a holder of Bats voting common stock to provide its bank, broker, trust or other nominee with voting instructions will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the proposal to adopt the merger agreement. Because the approval of each of (1) the share issuance proposal, (2) the non-binding compensation advisory proposal, (3) the CBOE Holdings meeting adjournment proposal and (4) the Bats meeting adjournment proposal requires the affirmative vote of the majority of the votes properly cast on the proposal, provided that a quorum is present, and because banks, brokers, trusts and other nominees do not have discretionary authority to vote on any of these proposals, a stockholder's failure to provide such stockholder's bank, broker, trust or other nominee with voting instructions will have no effect on approval of any of these proposals.

10

Table of Contents

Q:

Can I change or revoke my vote after I have delivered my proxy?

A:

Q:

A:

Yes. If you are a holder of record, you can change your vote at any time before your proxy is voted at the special meeting by:

delivering a signed written notice of revocation to the Corporate Secretary of your company at:

CBOE Holdings, Inc. 400 South LaSalle Street Chicago, Illinois 60605 Attention: Corporate Secretary Bats Global Markets, Inc. 8050 Marshall Drive, Suite 120 Lenexa, Kansas 66214 Attention: Corporate Secretary

signing and delivering a new, valid proxy bearing a later date and, if it is a written proxy, signed and delivered to the attention of your company's Corporate Secretary;

submitting another proxy by telephone or on the Internet (your latest telephone or Internet voting instructions will be followed); or

attending the special meeting and voting in person, although your attendance alone will not revoke your proxy.

If your shares are held in a "street name" account, you must contact your bank, broker, trust or other nominee to change your vote.

Q: What should CBOE Holdings stockholders or Bats stockholders do if they receive more than one set of voting materials?

A:
You may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and multiple proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your shares of CBOE Holdings common stock or Bats voting common stock in more than one brokerage account, you will receive a separate voting instruction card for each brokerage account in which you hold shares. If you are a holder of record and your shares are registered in more than one name, you will receive more than one proxy card. In addition, if you are both a stockholder of CBOE Holdings and a stockholder of Bats, you will receive one or more separate proxy cards or voting instruction cards for each company. In each case, please complete, sign, date and return each proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

How do I make an election for the type of merger consideration that I prefer to receive?

Each holder of record of Bats common stock as of the close of business on the Bats record date will be mailed a form of election ("form of election"). These materials will be mailed concurrently with this joint proxy statement/prospectus, but under separate cover. Each Bats stockholder should specify in the form of election (1) the number of shares of Bats common stock that such stockholder elects to have exchanged for the mixed consideration, (2) the number of shares of Bats common stock that such stockholder elects to have exchanged for the cash consideration and (3) the number of shares of Bats common stock that such stockholder elects to have exchanged for the stock consideration. Any Bats stockholder who does not make an election will be deemed to have made an election to receive the mixed consideration. The consideration to be paid to Bats stockholders electing to receive only cash consideration or stock consideration is subject, pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement, to automatic adjustment, as applicable, to ensure that the total amount of cash paid, and the total number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock issued, in the merger is the same as what would be paid and issued if all Bats stockholders were to receive the mixed consideration. No fractional shares of CBOE Holdings common stock will be issued in the merger, and Bats stockholders will receive cash in lieu of any fractional shares of

Table of Contents

Q:

A:

Q:

A:

CBOE Holdings common stock. An election will have been properly made only if the exchange agent has received a properly completed form of election at its designated office by 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date that is two business days preceding the closing date (the "*election deadline*").

Q: When can Bats stockholders expect to receive the merger consideration?

A:

Because no shares of Bats common stock are certificated and the election deadline is two business days prior to the closing date, the number of shares of Bats common stock that will be converted into the mixed consideration, the cash consideration or the stock consideration will be determined on or prior to the closing date. Accordingly, each holder of shares of Bats common stock in whose name such shares are registered will be entitled to receive the merger consideration immediately following the effective time of the merger, except that the accounts of holders of shares of Bats common stock may not be credited at The Depository Trust Company unless the holder so requests.

Will I receive the form of merger consideration that I request on the form of election?

Not necessarily. The aggregate amount of cash and the aggregate number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock to be paid and issued, respectively, to Bats stockholders pursuant to the merger agreement are fixed. Each share of Bats common stock with respect to which a Bats stockholder makes an election to receive the mixed consideration, and each share of Bats common stock held by a Bats stockholder who fails to make any valid election with respect to such stockholder's shares of Bats common stock, will receive \$10.00 in cash and 0.3201 of a share of CBOE Holdings common stock, which amounts are not subject to proration or adjustment.

However, if there is an oversubscription of the aggregate amount of cash available to be paid by CBOE Holdings to Bats stockholders as merger consideration due to the elections of Bats stockholders (or failure to make an election), the aggregate amount of cash payable by CBOE Holdings in the merger will not be increased. Similarly, if there is an oversubscription of the aggregate number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock available to be issued by CBOE Holdings to Bats stockholders as merger consideration due to the elections of Bats stockholders (or failure to make an election), the aggregate number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock to be issued by CBOE Holdings in the merger will not be increased. Rather, in either such case, the exchange agent will allocate between cash and shares of CBOE Holdings common stock in the manner described in "The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration" and "The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration Stock Consideration" to ensure that the total amount of cash paid and the total number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock issued in the merger is the same as what would be paid and issued if all Bats stockholders were to receive the mixed consideration.

Accordingly, there is no assurance that a Bats stockholder that has made a valid election to receive solely cash consideration or solely stock consideration will receive the form of consideration elected with respect to the shares of Bats common stock held by such stockholder.

For detailed illustrations of the potential proration and adjustment of the merger consideration for those stockholders electing to receive solely cash consideration or solely stock consideration for their shares of Bats common stock, see "The Merger Agreement Allocation of Merger Consideration and Illustrative Elections and Calculations."

What is the deadline for making an election?

Your election, to be properly made, must be received by Computer Share Trust Company, N.A., the exchange agent for the merger, which we refer to as the "*exchange agent*," at its designated

Table of Contents

Q:

Q:

A:

office by the election deadline, which is 5:00 p.m. New York City time on the date that is two business days preceding the closing date of the merger. CBOE Holdings and Bats will publicly announce the anticipated election deadline at least three business days before the anticipated closing date of the merger.

Q: What happens if I do not send a form of election or it is not received by the election deadline?

A:

If the exchange agent does not receive a properly completed form of election from you at or prior to the election deadline, then you will be deemed to have elected to receive mixed consideration with respect to your shares of Bats common stock. You bear the risk of delivery of the form of election to the exchange agent.

Can I change my election after the form of election has been submitted?

A:

Yes. You may revoke your election at or prior to the election deadline by submitting a written notice of revocation to the exchange agent. Revocations must specify the name in which your shares are registered on the share transfer books of Bats and any other information that the exchange agent may request. If you wish to submit a new election, you must do so in accordance with the election procedures described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus and the form of election. If you instructed a bank, broker, trust or other nominee holder to submit an election for your shares, you must follow directions from your bank, broker, trust or other nominee for changing those instructions. The notice of revocation must be received by the exchange agent at or prior to the election deadline in order for the revocation to be valid.

Q: May I transfer shares of Bats common stock after making an election?

A:
Yes, but only if you revoke your election or the merger agreement is terminated. Once you properly make an election with respect to any shares of Bats common stock, you will be unable to sell or otherwise transfer those shares, unless you properly revoke your election or the merger agreement is terminated.

May I transfer shares of Bats common stock before the Bats special meeting?

A:

Yes. The Bats record date is earlier than the Bats special meeting and the date that the merger is expected to be completed. If you transfer your shares of Bats common stock after the Bats record date but before the Bats special meeting, you will retain your right to vote at the Bats special meeting, but you will have transferred the right to receive the merger consideration in the merger. In order to receive the merger consideration, you must hold your shares through the completion of the merger.

Q: Who can help answer my questions?

If you have any questions about the special meetings, the merger or how to submit your proxy, or, for Bats stockholders, how to complete your form of election, or if you need additional copies of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, the enclosed proxy card or voting instructions, you should contact:

Table of Contents

If you are a CBOE Holdings stockholder, please contact MacKenzie Partners, Inc. ("MacKenzie"), CBOE Holdings' proxy solicitor:

105 Madison Avenue New York, New York 10016 (212) 929-5500 (Call Collect) or Call Toll-Free (800) 322-2885 CBOE@mackenziepartners.com

If you are a Bats stockholder, please contact Innisfree M&A Incorporated ("Innisfree"), Bats' proxy solicitor:

501 Madison Avenue, 20th floor New York, New York 10022 Shareholders may call toll free: (888) 750-5834 Banks and brokers may call collect: (212) 750-5833

14

SUMMARY

The following is a summary that highlights information contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. This summary does not contain all of the information that might be important to you. For a more complete description of the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, including the merger and the issuance of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock pursuant to the merger agreement, we encourage you to read carefully this entire joint proxy statement/prospectus, including the attached Annexes. In addition, we encourage you to read carefully the information incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus, which includes important business and financial information about CBOE Holdings that has been filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). You may obtain the information incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus without charge by following the instructions in the section entitled "Where You Can Find More Information" beginning on page 422.

Information about the Companies

CBOE Holdings (see page 227)

CBOE Holdings is the holding company for Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated ("*CBOE*"), CBOE Futures Exchange, LLC ("*CFE*"), C2 Options Exchange, Incorporated ("*C2*") and other subsidiaries. The principal executive offices of CBOE Holdings are located at 400 South LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60605, and its telephone number is (312) 786-5600.

CBOE Holdings' principal business is operating markets that offer for trading options on various market indexes ("*index options*"), mostly on an exclusive basis, and futures contracts, as well as trading options on non-exclusive "multiply-listed" options, such as options on the stocks of individual corporations ("*equity options*") and options on other exchange-traded products ("*ETP options*"), such as exchange-traded funds ("*ETF options*") and exchange-traded notes ("*ETN options*"). CBOE Holdings operates three stand-alone exchanges but reports the results of its operations in one reporting segment.

CBOE is the primary options market of CBOE Holdings and offers trading in listed options through a single system that integrates electronic trading and traditional open outcry trading on the trading floor in Chicago. This integration of electronic trading and traditional open outcry trading into a single exchange is known as the Hybrid trading model. CFE, the all-electronic futures exchange of CBOE Holdings, offers trading in futures on the VIX volatility index and other products. C2 is the all-electronic exchange of CBOE Holdings that also offers trading in listed options and may operate with a different market model and fee structure than CBOE. All of these exchanges operate on a proprietary technology platform known as CBOE Command.

Since 1974, the first full year of trading on CBOE, CBOE Holdings has grown from 5.6 million contracts on one exchange to 1.2 billion contracts on three exchanges in 2015.

Merger Sub (see page 227)

CBOE Corporation, which we refer to as "*Merger Sub*," is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings and was formed solely for the purpose of consummating the merger and the subsequent merger. Merger Sub has not carried on any activities to date, except for activities incidental to its formation and activities undertaken in connection with the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement. The principal executive offices of Merger Sub are located at 400 South LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60605, and its telephone number is (312) 786-5600.

Merger LLC (see page 227)

CBOE V, LLC is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings and was formed solely for the purpose of consummating the subsequent merger. Merger LLC has not carried on any activities to

Table of Contents

date, except for activities incidental to its formation and activities undertaken in connection with the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement. The principal executive offices of Merger LLC are located at 400 South LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60605, and its telephone number is (312) 786-5600.

Bats (see page 228)

Bats is a leading global operator of securities exchanges and other electronic markets enabled by world-class technology. Bats provides trade execution, market data, trade reporting, connectivity and risk management solutions to brokers, market makers, asset managers and other market participants, ultimately benefiting retail and institutional investors across multiple asset classes. Bats' principal objective is to improve markets by maximizing efficiency and mitigating trade execution risk for market participants. Bats' asset class focus is comprised of listed cash equity securities in the United States and Europe, listed equity options in the United States and certain foreign exchange products, or "*FX*," globally as well as exchange-traded products, or "*ETPs*," including exchange-traded funds, or "*ETFs*," in the United States and Europe. For the nine months ended September 30, 2016, trade execution comprised 44.2% of Bats' revenues less cost of revenues, and market data and connectivity, or "*non-transaction revenues*," comprised 55.8% of Bats' revenues less cost of revenues. The principal office of Bats is located at 8050 Marshall Drive, Suite 120, Lenexa, Kansas 66214, and its telephone number is (913) 815-7000.

Bats is the second largest exchange operator in U.S. listed cash equity securities trading by market share, the largest exchange operator of ETFs and other ETPs by market share, and the largest European exchange operator as measured by notional value traded as of September 30, 2016. In addition, for each of the nine consecutive months ended September 30, 2016, excluding the Chinese exchanges, Bats was the largest equities market operator globally as measured by notional value traded. Moreover, during 2015 Bats operated the fastest growing market in the United States for exchange traded options as measured by market share.

The Merger (see page 94)

On September 25, 2016, the CBOE Holdings board and the Bats board each approved the merger agreement attached as *Annex A* to this joint proxy statement/prospectus. The merger agreement provides that, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein, Merger Sub will merge with and into Bats, with Bats continuing as the surviving corporation and as a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings. Immediately following the effective time of the merger, Bats, as the surviving corporation in the merger, will merge with and into Merger LLC, with Merger LLC surviving the subsequent merger. At the effective time of the merger, each share of Bats common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (other than shares held by CBOE Holdings, Bats or any of their respective subsidiaries, shares held by any holder of Bats common stock who is entitled to demand and properly demands appraisal of such shares under Delaware law and unvested restricted shares of Bats common stock granted under any Bats equity incentive plan, which are discussed under "The Merger Interests of Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger Bats Directors and Executive Officers Treatment of Bats Equity Awards") will be converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, upon the terms provided in the merger agreement and as described below under "The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration."

We encourage you to carefully read the merger agreement in its entirety. We currently expect that the merger will be completed in the first half of 2017, subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions to the merger. However, we cannot predict the actual timing of the completion of the merger.

Table of Contents

Merger Consideration (see page 176)

The merger agreement provides that at the effective time of the merger, each share of Bats common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (other than shares held by CBOE Holdings, Bats or any of their respective subsidiaries, shares held by any holder of Bats common stock who is entitled to demand and properly demands appraisal of such shares under Delaware law and unvested restricted shares of Bats common stock granted under any Bats equity incentive plan, which are discussed under "The Merger Interests of Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger Bats Directors and Executive Officers Treatment of Bats Equity Awards") will be converted into the right to receive, at the election of the holder of such shares of Bats common stock, either the mixed consideration, cash consideration or stock consideration, in each case as described below, subject to the automatic proration and adjustment procedures described under "The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration Cash Consideration" beginning on page 177, "The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration beginning on page 178 and "The Merger Agreement Allocation of Merger Consideration and Illustrative Elections and Calculations" beginning on page 178.

The consideration to be paid to Bats stockholders electing to receive only cash consideration or stock consideration is subject, pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement, to automatic adjustment, as applicable, to ensure that the total amount of cash paid, and the total number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock issued, in the merger is the same as what would be paid and issued if all Bats stockholders were to receive the mixed consideration. Accordingly, the total number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock constituting the stock consideration and the total amount of cash consideration will not change from what was agreed to in the merger agreement (other than for adjustment in the event that there is any change in the outstanding shares of capital stock of CBOE Holdings or Bats as a result of any reclassification, stock split (including a reverse stock split), recapitalization, split-up, combination, exchange or readjustment of shares or other similar transaction, or any stock dividend or stock distribution, which we refer to as a "capital stock adjustment event"). However, since the market price of CBOE Holdings common stock will fluctuate, the total value of the merger consideration may increase or decrease between the date of the merger agreement and the effective time of the merger. Accordingly, the value of the actual per share consideration to be paid to Bats stockholders cannot be determined until the effective time of the merger. No fractional shares of CBOE Holdings common stock will be issued in the merger, and Bats stockholders will receive cash in lieu of any fractional shares of CBOE Holdings common stock.

Mixed Consideration

The merger agreement provides that each share of Bats common stock with respect to which a Bats stockholder makes an election to receive a fixed combination of cash and shares of CBOE Holdings common stock, and each share for which a Bats stockholder fails to make any election with respect to such stockholder's shares of Bats common stock, will be converted into the right to receive the combination of (i) \$10.00 in cash and (ii) 0.3201 of a share of CBOE Holdings common stock.

Cash Consideration

The merger agreement provides that each share of Bats common stock with respect to which a Bats stockholder makes a valid election to receive cash will be converted into the right to receive an amount of cash (rounded to two decimal places), without interest, equal to \$10.00 plus the product of (i) 0.3201 multiplied by (ii) the closing CBOE Holdings VWAP (calculated as (1) the sum of (A) the share price of each trade of CBOE Holdings common stock during the ten trading day period multiplied by (B) the number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock traded in such trade, divided by (2) the total number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock traded during the ten trading day period), subject to the proration and adjustment procedures described under "The Merger

17

Table of Contents

Agreement Merger Consideration Cash Consideration" beginning on page 177 and "The Merger Agreement Allocation of Merger Consideration and Illustrative Elections and Calculations" beginning on page 178.

Stock Consideration

The merger agreement provides that each share of Bats common stock with respect to which a Bats stockholder makes a valid election to receive stock will convert into the right to receive a number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock equal to the sum of (x) 0.3201 of a share of CBOE Holdings common stock plus (y) the quotient (rounded to four decimal places) obtained by dividing \$10.00 by the closing CBOE Holdings VWAP, subject to the proration and adjustment procedures described under "The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration Stock Consideration" beginning on page 178 and "The Merger Agreement Allocation of Merger Consideration and Illustrative Elections and Calculations" beginning on page 178.

Treatment of Bats Equity Awards (see page 166)

Bats Stock Options

Pursuant to the merger agreement, at the effective time of the merger, each outstanding unexercised option to purchase Bats common stock granted under any Bats equity incentive plan, whether vested or unvested ("Bats Stock Options"), will be converted into an option to purchase shares of CBOE Holdings common stock ("CBOE Holdings Stock Options"), with the same terms and conditions (including vesting schedule) as were applicable to such Bats Stock Option (but taking into account any changes, including any acceleration of vesting of such Bats Stock Option, occurring by reason of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement). The number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock subject to each such CBOE Holdings Stock Option will be equal to the number of shares of Bats common stock subject to the corresponding Bats Stock Option immediately prior to the effective time of the merger multiplied by the exchange ratio (subject to certain adjustments and rounding), and the exercise price of such CBOE Holdings Stock Option will be equal to the per share exercise price under the corresponding Bats Stock Option divided by the exchange ratio (subject to certain adjustments and rounding).

Bats Restricted Shares

Pursuant to the merger agreement, at the effective time of the merger, each outstanding award of restricted Bats common stock granted under any Bats equity incentive plan ("Bats Restricted Shares") will be assumed by CBOE Holdings and will be converted into an award of restricted shares of CBOE Holdings common stock ("CBOE Holdings Restricted Shares"), subject to the same terms and conditions (including vesting schedule) that applied to the applicable Bats Restricted Shares immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (but taking into account any changes, including any acceleration of vesting of such Bats Restricted Shares, occurring by reason provided for in the merger agreement). The number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock subject to each such award of CBOE Holdings Restricted Shares will be equal to the number of shares of Bats common stock subject to the corresponding Bats Restricted Share award multiplied by the exchange ratio.

Ownership of CBOE Holdings after the Merger

Based on the number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock and Bats common stock outstanding on December 9, 2016, the record date for the two companies' special meetings, CBOE Holdings expects to issue or reserve for issuance approximately 31.9 million shares of CBOE Holdings common stock in connection with the merger (including shares of CBOE Holdings common stock issuable to Bats stockholders pursuant to Bats Stock Options and Bats Restricted Shares). Based on

Table of Contents

these numbers, immediately following the completion of the merger, pre-existing CBOE Holdings stockholders and former Bats stockholders would own approximately 72% and 28% of the outstanding shares of CBOE Holdings common stock, respectively. The merger will have no effect on the number of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock owned by existing CBOE Holdings stockholders.

Share Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers

At the close of business on the CBOE Holdings record date, directors and executive officers of CBOE Holdings and their affiliates owned and were entitled to vote approximately 745,255 shares of CBOE Holdings common stock, collectively representing less than 1.0% of the shares of CBOE Holdings common stock outstanding on that date.

At the close of business on the Bats record date, directors and executive officers of Bats and their affiliates owned and were entitled to vote approximately 6,276,848 shares of Bats voting common stock, collectively representing 6.7% of the shares of Bats voting common stock outstanding on that date.

Recommendation of the CBOE Holdings Board and Its Reasons for the Merger (see page 110)

After careful consideration, on September 25, 2016 the CBOE Holdings board unanimously approved the merger agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the merger agreement. The CBOE Holdings board unanimously recommends that CBOE Holdings stockholders vote "FOR" the share issuance proposal and "FOR" the CBOE Holdings meeting adjournment proposal at the CBOE Holdings special meeting.

For a summary of the factors considered by the CBOE Holdings board in reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement as well as the CBOE Holdings board's reasons for, and certain risks related to, the merger, see "The Merger Recommendation of the CBOE Holdings Board and Its Reasons for the Merger" beginning on page 110.

Recommendation of the Bats Board and Its Reasons for the Merger (see page 115)

After careful consideration, on September 25, 2016, the Bats board unanimously (as among the members of the Bats board present) approved the merger agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the merger agreement. The Bats board unanimously recommends that Bats stockholders vote "FOR" the proposal to adopt the merger agreement, "FOR" the non-binding compensation advisory proposal and "FOR" the Bats meeting adjournment proposal at the Bats special meeting.

For a summary of the factors considered by the Bats board in reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, including the merger, as well as the Bats board's reasons for, and certain risks related to, the merger, see "The Merger Recommendation of the Bats Board and Its Reasons for the Merger" beginning on page 115.

Opinions of Financial Advisors (see page 121)

Opinions of CBOE Holdings' Co-Lead Financial Advisors

BofA Merrill Lynch Opinion

On September 25, 2016, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, which we refer to as "*BofA Merrill Lynch*," a financial advisor to CBOE Holdings, delivered to the CBOE Holdings board an oral opinion, which was confirmed by delivery of a written opinion dated September 25, 2016, to the effect that, as of the date of the opinion and based on and subject to various assumptions and

Table of Contents

limitations described in the opinion, the consideration to be paid by CBOE Holdings in the merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to CBOE Holdings.

The full text of BofA Merrill Lynch's written opinion to the CBOE Holdings board, which describes, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, factors considered and limitations on the review undertaken by BofA Merrill Lynch, is attached as Annex B to this joint proxy statement/prospectus and is incorporated by reference herein in its entirety. BofA Merrill Lynch delivered its opinion to the CBOE Holdings board for the benefit and use of the CBOE Holdings board (in its capacity as such) in connection with and for purposes of its evaluation of the consideration to be paid by CBOE Holdings in the merger, from a financial point of view, to CBOE Holdings. BofA Merrill Lynch's opinion did not address any other aspect of the merger, and no opinion or view was expressed as to the relative merits of the merger in comparison to other strategies or transactions that might be available to CBOE Holdings or in which CBOE Holdings might engage or as to the underlying business decision of CBOE Holdings to proceed with or effect the merger. BofA Merrill Lynch also expressed no opinion or recommendation as to how any stockholder should vote or act in connection with the proposed merger or any related matter.

For a description of the opinion that the CBOE Holdings board received from BofA Merrill Lynch, see "The Merger Opinions of CBOE Holdings' Co-Lead Financial Advisors BofA Merrill Lynch Opinion" beginning on page 121.

Broadhaven Opinion

In connection with the transaction, the CBOE Holdings board received the written opinion dated September 25, 2016 from one of CBOE Holdings' financial advisors, Broadhaven Capital Partners LLC, referred to as "*Broadhaven*," that, as of such date, the consideration to be paid and issued by CBOE Holdings pursuant to the merger agreement, taken in the aggregate, was fair to CBOE Holdings, from a financial point of view. The full text of Broadhaven's opinion is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as <u>Annex C</u>.

The opinion sets forth the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and qualifications and limitations on the review undertaken by Broadhaven in connection with the opinion. The opinion addressed only the fairness from a financial point of view to CBOE Holdings of the merger consideration to be paid and issued by CBOE Holdings pursuant to the merger agreement as of the date of the opinion and did not address any other aspect of the transaction. In addition, the opinion did not in any manner address (i) the prices at which shares of CBOE Holdings common stock would trade after the announcement or consummation of the transaction or at any other time, (ii) the underlying business decision by CBOE Holdings to proceed with or effect the transaction or the likelihood of consummation of the transaction, (iii) the relative merits of the transaction as compared to any other transaction or business strategy in which CBOE Holdings might engage or (iv) the fairness (financial or otherwise) of the amount, nature or any other aspect of the compensation to any of the officers, directors or employees of any party to the transaction, or any class of such persons, relative to the merger consideration. The opinion is addressed to the CBOE Holdings board only and does not constitute a recommendation as to how any CBOE Holdings or Bats stockholder should vote with respect to the transaction or any other matter.

For a description of the opinion that the CBOE Holdings board received from Broadhaven, see "The Merger Opinions of CBOE Holdings' Co-Lead Financial Advisors Broadhaven Opinion" beginning on page 132.

Table of Contents

Opinion of Bats' Financial Advisor

Barclays Opinion

Bats engaged Barclays Capital Inc. ("*Barclays*") to act as its financial advisor with respect to pursuing strategic alternatives for Bats, including a possible sale of Bats. On September 25, 2016, Barclays rendered its oral opinion (which was subsequently confirmed in writing) to the Bats board that, as of such date and based upon and subject to the qualifications, limitations and assumptions stated in its opinion, the merger consideration to be offered to the stockholders of Bats in the merger is fair, from a financial point of view, to such stockholders.

The full text of Barclays' written opinion, dated as of September 25, 2016, is attached as <u>Annex D</u> to this joint proxy statement/prospectus. Barclays' written opinion sets forth, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, factors considered and limitations upon the review undertaken by Barclays in rendering its opinion. You are encouraged to read the opinion carefully in its entirety. A summary of Barclays' opinion and the methodology that Barclays used to render its opinion is set forth in this joint proxy statement/prospectus under the caption "The Merger Opinion of Bats' Financial Advisor Barclays Opinion" on page 143. The summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the opinion.

Interests of Bats' Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger (see page 165)

The directors and executive officers of Bats have interests in the merger that are in addition to their interests as stockholders of Bats generally. These interests include, but are not limited to, continued employment with the combined company, the treatment in the merger of Bats Stock Options and Bats Restricted Shares held by these directors and executive officers (including accelerated vesting of outstanding equity awards on a qualifying termination of employment within 24 months after the closing, and in the case of certain outstanding Bats Stock Options and Bats Restricted Shares, accelerated vesting immediately upon the effective time). In addition, Bats executive officers are, by reason of their respective employment agreements with Bats, entitled to change-in-control severance benefits upon a termination of their employment within the 24-month period following the consummation the merger. Certain executive officers of Bats have also entered into offer letters with CBOE Holdings pursuant to which each such executive has indicated his intent to enter into employment with CBOE Holdings following the completion of the merger in exchange for the compensation specified in his respective offer letter. In addition, three individuals who will be designated by Bats and who are serving on the Bats board immediately prior to the effective time of the merger will become directors of the combined company. The Bats board was aware of these interests and considered them, among other matters, in approving the merger agreement and in determining to recommend that Bats stockholders adopt the merger agreement.

Board of Directors of CBOE Holdings after the Merger (see page 174)

In connection with the merger, CBOE Holdings has agreed to take all requisite actions so that, as of the effective time of the merger, the CBOE Holdings board will consist of 14 directors, including three individuals designated by Bats who are serving on the Bats board immediately prior to the effective time of the merger and comply with the policies of the Nominating and Governance Committee of the CBOE Holdings board (the "CBOE Holdings N&G Committee") disclosed to Bats. Bats' current directors will resign from the Bats board as of the effective time of the merger. The CBOE Holdings board has indicated that it intends to appoint Joe Ratterman, the current Chairman of the Bats board, to the CBOE Holdings board at the effective time of the merger. However, as of the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, the CBOE Holdings board has not taken any such action, nor has there been any determination as to the identity of the other two Bats directors who will be

Table of Contents

appointed to the CBOE Holdings board or the three CBOE Holdings directors who will step down from the CBOE Holdings board at the effective time of the merger.

Information about the current CBOE Holdings directors and executive officers can be found in the documents listed under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information" beginning on page 422.

Listing of CBOE Holdings Common Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Bats Common Stock (see pages 160 and 164)

Application will be made to have the shares of CBOE Holdings common stock to be issued in the merger approved for listing on NASDAQ, where CBOE Holdings common stock currently is traded under the symbol "CBOE." If the merger is completed, Bats common stock will be delisted from the Bats BZX Exchange, which we refer to as "BZX" and will be deregistered under the Exchange Act and Bats will no longer file periodic reports with the SEC. CBOE Holdings intends to list on BZX following the merger, but there can be no assurance regarding the timing of such listing.

Bats Stockholder Appraisal Rights (see page 160)

Under Delaware law, Bats stockholders of record who do not vote in favor of the proposal to adopt the merger agreement and otherwise comply with the requirements set forth in Section 262 (as defined below) will be entitled to seek appraisal rights and obtain payment in cash for the judicially determined fair value of their shares of Bats common stock in connection with the merger, if the merger is completed. This value could be more than, less than or the same as the implied value of the merger consideration for Bats common stock. The relevant provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "DGCL"), are included as Annex E to this joint proxy statement/prospectus. We encourage you to read these provisions carefully and in their entirety. Moreover, due to the complexity of the procedures for exercising the right to seek appraisal, Bats stockholders who are considering exercising such rights are encouraged to seek the advice of legal counsel. Failure to strictly comply with these provisions will result in a loss of the right of appraisal.

An executed proxy card that does not contain voting instructions will, unless revoked, be voted in favor of the proposal to adopt the merger agreement. Therefore, a Bats stockholder who submits a proxy and who wishes to exercise appraisal rights must mark "AGAINST" or "ABSTAIN" with respect to the proposal to adopt the merger agreement. Bats stockholders who wish to exercise their appraisal rights and hold shares in the name of a bank, broker, trust or other nominee must instruct their bank, broker, trust or other nominee to take the steps necessary to enable them to demand appraisal for their shares.

Conditions to Completion of the Merger (see page 186)

The obligations of CBOE Holdings, Merger Sub, Merger LLC and Bats to effect the merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver by CBOE Holdings, Merger Sub and Bats of the following conditions at or prior to the completion of the merger:

CBOE Holdings stockholders approving the share issuance proposal and Bats stockholders approving the proposal to adopt the merger agreement;

the approval for listing on NASDAQ, subject to official notice of issuance, of the shares of CBOE Holdings common stock to be issued to Bats stockholders in the merger;

the expiration or termination of any applicable waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended (the "*HSR Act*");

the receipt of all other authorizations, consents, orders, declarations or approvals of or filings with, or terminations or expirations of waiting periods imposed by, any governmental entity,

Table of Contents

which the failure to obtain, make or occur would have the effect of making any of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement illegal or would, individually or in the aggregate, have a "material adverse effect" (as described on page 188 of this joint proxy statement/prospectus) with respect to Bats or CBOE Holdings;

the absence of any temporary restraining order, preliminary or permanent injunction or other order issued by a court of competent jurisdiction or other legal restraint or prohibition preventing the completion of the merger or the subsequent merger or imposing a burdensome effect (as described on page 202 of this joint proxy statement/prospectus) upon the consummation of the merger or the subsequent merger;

the absence of any action threatened or commenced by any governmental entity that is pending by or before any governmental entity of competent jurisdiction where a judgment would, individually or in the aggregate with other such judgments, prevent or would reasonably be expected to prevent the completion of the merger or the subsequent merger or impose a burdensome effect upon the consummation of the merger or the subsequent merger;

the declaration by the SEC of the effectiveness under the Securities Act of the registration statement on Form S-4 of which this joint proxy statement/prospectus forms a part and the absence of any stop order or proceedings initiated (and not withdrawn) by the SEC for that purpose;

the accuracy and correctness of representations and warranties of the other party, subject to certain materiality or "material adverse effect" qualifications described in the merger agreement, and the receipt of a certificate from an executive officer of the other party to that effect;

the other party's having performed its covenants in the merger agreement in all material respects at or prior to the completion of the merger, and the receipt of a certificate from an executive officer of the other party to that effect;

the receipt by each party of a tax opinion from its counsel that the merger and subsequent merger, taken together, will constitute a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "*Code*"), and that CBOE Holdings and Bats will each be a party to that reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(b) of the Code;

the approval by the SEC of the merger, the subsequent merger and any related amendments to the governance documents and rules of CBOE Holdings, Bats and their respective subsidiaries pursuant to Section 19(b) and Rule 19b-4 of the Exchange Act (the "SEC Approvals");

the approval by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA") of the change of ownership or control of Bats' broker dealer entities; and

the approval by the United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA") of the merger and the delivery of the related notifications to the FCA.

In addition, it is a condition to CBOE Holdings' obligation to close that holders of no more than 20% of the outstanding shares of Bats common stock as of the effective time of the merger have properly demanded appraisal of their shares.

Some of the conditions set forth in the merger agreement may be waived by CBOE Holdings or Bats, subject to the agreement of the other party in specific cases. For a more detailed discussion of these matters, see "The Merger Agreement Conditions to Completion of the Merger" beginning on page 186.

Regulatory Approvals (see page 154)

CBOE Holdings and Bats have agreed to use their reasonable best efforts to obtain all regulatory approvals required to complete the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement. These approvals include the expiration or termination of the waiting period pursuant to the HSR Act, and receipt of approval from the SEC, FINRA, FCA and the Dutch Central Bank. On October 19, 2016, CBOE Holdings and Bats each filed a notification and report form under the HSR Act with the FTC and the DOJ. Early termination of the waiting period under the HSR Act was granted on November 18, 2016.

Debt Financing (see page 224)

Concurrently, and in connection with entering into the merger agreement, CBOE Holdings entered into a commitment letter (together with all exhibits, annexes and schedules attached thereto, and as amended, restated, amended and restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the "debt commitment letter"), with Bank of America, N.A. and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (or any of its designated affiliates) (Bank of America, N.A., and other such financial institutions that accede as lender to the debt commitment letter in accordance with its terms, the "commitment parties"), pursuant to which, the commitment parties, subject to the satisfaction and waiver of certain conditions as further specified in the debt commitment letter, have committed to provide debt financing for the purposes of funding (i) the cash portion of the merger consideration, (ii) the repayment of certain existing indebtedness of Bats and its subsidiaries and (iii) related fees and expenses, which debt financing consists of a senior unsecured 364-day bridge loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$1.65 billion (the "bridge facility") due and payable 364 days after the closing date to the extent CBOE Holdings fails to generate gross cash proceeds in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$1.65 billion from permanent financing, including in the form of a senior unsecured term loan facility and the issuance of senior unsecured notes on or prior to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

The commitment parties' obligations to provide such financing became effective September 25, 2016 and will end on the earliest of (i) the termination of the merger agreement pursuant to its terms, (ii) July 25, 2017 (or if the outside date is extended pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement, October 23, 2017) or (iii) the closing of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement without the use of the bridge facility.

CBOE Holdings is currently in the process of negotiating a \$1.0 billion senior unsecured delayed draw term facility (subject to increase of up to \$1.5 billion in the aggregate) to replace a portion of the bridge facility and also expects to issue senior unsecured notes prior to the completion of the merger in lieu of drawing the remainder amount on the bridge facility. CBOE Holdings expects that the senior unsecured term facility will become effective prior to December 31, 2016. CBOE Holdings anticipates that the proceeds of the senior unsecured term facility will be borrowed on or about the closing date of the merger, and that the senior unsecured term facility will mature five years following the closing date of the merger. CBOE Holdings anticipates that borrowings under the senior unsecured term facility will bear interest, at CBOE Holdings' option, at either (i) the London Interbank Offered Rate ("*LIBOR*") periodically fixed for an interest period (as selected by CBOE Holdings) of one, two, three or six months plus a margin (based on CBOE Holdings' public debt ratings) ranging from 1.00 percent to 1.75 percent or (ii) a daily floating rate based on the administrative agent's prime rate (subject to certain minimums based upon the federal funds effective rate or LIBOR) plus a margin (based on CBOE Holdings' public debt ratings) ranging from zero percent to 0.75 percent. CBOE Holdings expects that, following the closing date of the merger and drawing of the term loans, borrowings under the senior unsecured term facility may be prepaid in whole or in part at the election of CBOE Holdings without premium or penalty (other than LIBOR breakage costs in the event that amounts borrowed under option (i) above are repaid prior to the end of an agreed upon interest period). CBOE

Table of Contents

Holdings also expects that the senior unsecured term facility will contain customary terms, conditions to funding, representations and warranties, covenants and events of default for facilities of its type.

Bats Acquisition Proposals (see page 190)

Subject to certain exceptions, the merger agreement precludes Bats from soliciting, initiating or knowingly encouraging or knowingly inducing or facilitating the making, submission or announcement of any inquiries or the making of any proposal or offer constituting, related to or that could reasonably be expected to lead to a Bats acquisition proposal (as described on page 192 of this joint proxy statement/prospectus). Notwithstanding such restrictions, the merger agreement provides that, at any time prior to Bats stockholders approving the proposal to adopt the merger agreement, provided that Bats and its subsidiaries have complied with their non-solicitation restrictions, the Bats board may, solely in response to a Bats superior proposal (as described on page 192 of this joint proxy statement/prospectus) received on or after the date of the merger agreement that has not been withdrawn or abandoned and that did not result from a breach of the merger agreement, make a Bats adverse recommendation change (as described on page 191 of this joint proxy statement/prospectus) and may cause Bats to terminate the merger agreement and concurrently enter into a binding definitive agreement to effect such Bats superior proposal if Bats has taken certain actions and the Bats board determines in good faith (after consultation with Bats' outside legal counsel) that such Bats acquisition proposal continues to constitute a Bats superior proposal (as described under "The Merger Agreement Bats Acquisition Proposals" and "The Merger Agreement Special Meeting of Bats Stockholders; Recommendation of the Bats Board" beginning on page 190 and 196, respectively).

CBOE Holdings Acquisition Proposals (see page 193)

Subject to certain exceptions, the merger agreement precludes CBOE Holdings from soliciting, initiating or knowingly encouraging or knowingly inducing or facilitating the making, submission or announcement of any inquiries or the making of any proposal or offer constituting, related to or that could reasonably be expected to lead to a CBOE Holdings acquisition proposal (as described on page 195 of this joint proxy statement/prospectus). Notwithstanding such restrictions, the merger agreement provides that, at any time prior to CBOE Holdings stockholders approving the share issuance proposal, provided that CBOE Holdings and its subsidiaries have complied with their non-solicitation restrictions, the CBOE Holdings board may, solely in response to a CBOE Holdings superior proposal (as described on page 195 of this joint proxy statement/prospectus) received on or after the date of the merger agreement that has not been withdrawn or abandoned and that did not result from a breach of the merger agreement, make a CBOE Holdings adverse recommendation change (as described on page 195 of this joint proxy statement/prospectus) and may cause CBOE Holdings to terminate the merger agreement and concurrently enter into a binding definitive agreement to effect such CBOE Holdings superior proposal if CBOE Holdings has taken certain actions and the CBOE Holdings board determines in good faith (after consultation with CBOE Holdings' outside legal counsel) that such CBOE Holdings acquisition proposal continues to constitute a CBOE Holdings superior proposal (as described under "The Merger Agreement CBOE Holdings Acquisition Proposals" and "The Merger Agreement Special Meeting of CBOE Holdings Stockholders; Recommendation of the CBOE Holdings Board" beginning on page 193 and 198, respectively).

Table of Contents

Termination of the Merger Agreement (see page 216)

Termination by CBOE Holdings or Bats

The merger agreement may be terminated prior to the effective time of the merger by the mutual written consent of CBOE Holdings and Bats. Also, either CBOE Holdings or Bats may terminate the merger agreement at any time prior to the effective time of the merger if:

any court of competent jurisdiction or other government entity has issued a judgment, order, injunction, rule or decree, or taken any other action, enjoining, restraining or otherwise prohibiting or making illegal the consummation of the merger, the subsequent merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement or imposing a burdensome effect on the consummation thereof and such judgment, order, injunction, rule or decree has become final and nonappealable (provided that the right to terminate the merger agreement for this reason will not be available to any party that has failed to use its reasonable best efforts to contest, resolve or lift, as applicable, such judgment, order, injunction, rule, decree or other action);

the Bats stockholder meeting (including any adjournment or postponement thereof) was held to obtain the approval of the proposal to adopt the merger agreement and concluded without obtaining such approval (provided that Bats may not terminate the merger agreement for this reason if Bats has not complied with its obligations under the merger agreement with respect to not soliciting Bats acquisition proposals and the holding of such stockholder meeting);

the CBOE Holdings stockholder meeting (including any adjournment or postponement thereof) was held to obtain the share issuance proposal and concluded without obtaining such approval (provided that CBOE Holdings may not terminate the merger agreement for this reason if CBOE Holdings has not complied with its obligations under the merger agreement with respect to not soliciting CBOE Holdings acquisition proposals and the holding of such stockholder meeting); or

the merger is not completed on or before July 25, 2017 (or, if extended pursuant to the merger agreement, October 23, 2017) (the "*outside date*") (provided, that neither CBOE Holdings nor Bats has the right to terminate the merger agreement for this reason if the failure to consummate the merger by such date results from the material breach by CBOE Holdings, Merger Sub or Merger LLC (in the case of termination by CBOE Holdings) or Bats (in the case of termination by Bats) of any of its covenants or agreements contained in the merger agreement).

Termination by CBOE Holdings

CBOE Holdings may terminate the merger agreement as follows:

if Bats breaches or fails to perform in any material respect any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the merger agreement, which breach or failure to perform (i) would give rise to the failure of a condition to CBOE Holdings' obligation to complete the merger and (ii) cannot be or has not been cured within the period specified in the merger agreement;

if, prior to Bats stockholders approving the proposal to adopt the merger agreement, the Bats board or any committee thereof has (i) effected a Bats adverse recommendation change (whether or not permitted to do so under the terms of the merger agreement), (ii) adopted, approved, endorsed, declared advisable or recommended to Bats stockholders a Bats acquisition proposal other than the merger, (iii) failed to publicly reaffirm the Bats recommendation within three business days following receipt of a written request by CBOE Holdings to provide such

Table of Contents

reaffirmation after a Bats acquisition proposal has been publicly disclosed or has become publicly known, (iv) failed to include in this joint proxy statement/prospectus the Bats recommendation or included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus any proposal to vote upon or consider any Bats acquisition proposal other than the merger or (v) failed to recommend against a competing tender offer or exchange offer for 20% or more of the outstanding capital stock of Bats within ten business days after commencement of such offer;

if Bats breaches in any material respect any of its obligations with respect to not soliciting Bats acquisition proposals; or

if, prior to the CBOE Holdings stockholders approving the share issuance proposal, CBOE Holdings terminates the merger agreement in order to enter into a definitive agreement to effect a CBOE Holdings superior proposal, so long as CBOE Holdings has complied with its obligations with respect to not soliciting CBOE Holdings acquisition proposals and enters into such definitive agreement concurrently with the termination of the merger agreement and pays the termination fee in accordance with the procedures and time periods specified in the merger agreement.

Termination by Bats

Bats may terminate the merger agreement as follows:

if CBOE Holdings, Merger Sub or Merger LLC breaches or fails to perform in any material respect any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the merger agreement, which breach or failure to perform (i) would give rise to the failure of a condition to Bats' obligation to complete the merger and (ii) cannot be or has not been cured within the period specified in the merger agreement;

if prior to the CBOE Holdings stockholders approving the share issuance proposal, the CBOE Holdings board or any committee thereof has (i) effected a CBOE Holdings adverse recommendation change (whether or not permitted to do so under the terms of the merger agreement), (ii) adopted, approved, endorsed, declared advisable or recommended to CBOE Holdings stockholders a CBOE Holdings acquisition proposal other than the merger, (iii) failed to publicly reaffirm the CBOE Holdings recommendation within three business days following receipt of a written request by Bats to provide such reaffirmation after a CBOE Holdings acquisition proposal has been publicly disclosed or has become publicly known, (iv) failed to include in this joint proxy statement/prospectus the CBOE Holdings' recommendation or included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus any proposal to vote upon or consider any CBOE Holdings acquisition proposal other than the merger or (v) failed to recommend against a competing tender offer or exchange offer for 20% or more of the outstanding capital stock of CBOE Holdings within ten business days after commencement of such offer;

if CBOE Holdings breaches in any material respect any of its obligations with respect to not soliciting CBOE Holdings acquisition proposals; or

if, prior to Bats stockholders approving the proposal to adopt the merger agreement, Bats terminates the merger agreement in order to enter into a definitive agreement to effect a Bats superior proposal, so long as Bats has complied with its obligations with respect to not soliciting Bats acquisition proposals and enters into such definitive agreement concurrently with the termination of the merger agreement, and pays the termination fee in accordance with the procedures and time periods specified in the merger agreement.

Table of Contents

Termination Fees and Expenses (see page 218)

CBOE Holdings must pay Bats a termination fee of \$110.0 million if the merger agreement is terminated under certain specified circumstances, including (i) following a failure by Bats or CBOE Holdings to obtain the requisite stockholder approvals, if CBOE Holdings enters into a transaction with respect to a CBOE Holdings acquisition proposal within 12 months of such termination, or (ii) if Bats terminates the merger agreement following a CBOE Holdings adverse recommendation change.

Bats must pay CBOE Holdings a termination fee of \$110.0 million if the merger agreement is terminated under certain specified circumstances, including (i) following a failure by CBOE Holdings or Bats to obtain the requisite stockholder approvals, if Bats enters into a transaction with respect to a Bats acquisition proposal within 12 months of such termination, or (ii) if CBOE Holdings terminates the merger agreement following a Bats adverse recommendation change.

If the merger agreement is terminated under certain circumstances, CBOE Holdings or Bats may be required to reimburse the other party for its expenses incurred in connection with the merger in an aggregate amount not to exceed \$10 million.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences (see page 156)

The merger and subsequent merger, taken together, are intended to constitute a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. It is a condition to the completion of the merger that each of CBOE Holdings and Bats each receives a written opinion from its counsel that for U.S. federal income tax purposes (i) the merger and subsequent merger, taken together, will constitute a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and (ii) CBOE Holdings and Bats will each be a party to this reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(b) of the Code. Assuming that treatment is proper, (i) a holder of Bats common stock who receives solely shares of CBOE Holdings common stock in the merger generally will not recognize gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes, except with respect to the receipt of cash in lieu of a fractional share of CBOE Holdings common stock and (ii) a holder of Bats common stock who receives a combination of CBOE Holdings common stock and cash in the merger will recognize gain but not loss, and such holder's taxable gain in that case will not exceed the cash the holder receives in the merger. A holder of Bats common stock who receives solely cash in the merger will recognize gain or loss.

Tax matters are complicated, and the tax consequences of the merger to each holder of Bats common stock will depend on such stockholder's particular facts and circumstances For a more detailed description of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the exchange of Bats shares in the merger, see "The Merger Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences" beginning on page 156.

Accounting Treatment (see page 160)

CBOE Holdings will account for the acquisition of shares of Bats common stock through the merger in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification 805, Business Combinations, which we refer to as "ASC 805." In determining the acquirer for accounting purposes, CBOE Holdings considered the factors required under ASC 805 and determined that CBOE Holdings will be considered the acquirer of Bats for accounting purposes.

Risk Factors (see page 42)

In evaluating the merger, the merger agreement or the issuance of shares of CBOE Holdings common stock pursuant to the merger agreement, you should carefully read this joint proxy statement/prospectus and especially consider the factors discussed in the section entitled "Risk Factors" beginning on page 42.

Table of Contents

CBOE Holdings' Dividend Policy

CBOE Holdings has paid quarterly dividends since its initial public offering in 2010 and intends to continue paying regular quarterly dividends to its stockholders. However, any decision to pay dividends on its common stock will be at the discretion of the CBOE Holdings board, which may determine not to declare dividends at all or at a reduced amount. See "The Merger CBOE Holdings' Dividend Policy" beginning on page 154.

Comparison of Rights of CBOE Holdings Stockholders and Bats Stockholders (see page 377)

As a result of the merger, Bats stockholders will become CBOE Holdings stockholders, unless such stockholders elect to receive and actually receive only cash consideration. Following the completion of the merger, Bats stockholders who receive shares of CBOE Holdings common stock will have the same rights as CBOE Holdings stockholders. However, due to differences in the governing documents of Bats and CBOE Holdings, the rights of former Bats stockholders as CBOE Holdings stockholders will be different from the rights they had as Bats stockholders. Certain of these differences are described in detail under "Comparison of Rights of CBOE Holdings Stockholders and Bats Stockholders" beginning on page 377.

Expenses (see page 222)

Generally, all fees and expenses incurred in connection with the merger, the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement will be paid by the party incurring those expenses, subject to the specific exceptions discussed in this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

Summary Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data for CBOE Holdings

The following tables set forth the summary selected historical consolidated financial data for CBOE Holdings and its consolidated subsidiaries. The summary selected consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 have been derived from CBOE Holdings' audited consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, which are incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. The summary selected consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 have been derived from CBOE Holdings' audited consolidated financial statements and related notes for such years, which have not been incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. The summary selected consolidated financial data as of September 30, 2016 and 2015 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 have been derived from CBOE Holdings' unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2016, which is incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. The results for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the entire fiscal year. CBOE Holdings' unaudited interim financial statements reflect all adjustments that management of CBOE Holdings considers necessary for the fair presentation of CBOE Holdings' financial position and results of operations as of September 30, 2016 and 2015 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any future period.

This summary selected historical consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with CBOE Holdings' audited consolidated financial statements, the notes related thereto and the related "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" contained in CBOE Holdings' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 and CBOE Holdings' unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements, the notes related thereto and the related "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" contained in CBOE Holdings' Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2016. See "Where You Can Find More Information" beginning on page 422.

		Nine Mon Septem					Year Ended December 31,							
		2016		2015		2015		2014		2013		2012		2011
					((in thousan	ds,	except per s	sha	re data)				
Income Statement Data:														
Total operating revenues	\$	481,866	\$	478,599	\$	634,545	\$	617,225	\$	572,050	\$	512,338	\$	508,144
Total operating expenses		258,768		234,565		314,617		303,424		286,236		268,241		266,512
Operating income		223,098		244,034		319,928		313,801		285,814		244,097		241,632
Total other income (expense)		8,519		326		4,096		(4,104)		(2,158)		(1,546)		(1,548)
Income before income taxes		231,617		244,360		324,024		309,697		283,656		242,551		240,084
Income tax provision		91,059		89,739		119,001		119,983		107,657		85,156		100,678
•														
Net income	\$	140.558	\$	154,621	\$	205,023	\$	189,714	\$	175,999	\$	157,395	\$	139,406
	-	- 10,000	-	,	_	,	_	,	_	,	_	,	_	,
NI 4 14														
Net income allocated to	φ	120.074	φ	152 045	ф	204 125	φ	100 202	φ	172 962	φ	155 054	φ	126 592
common stockholders	\$	139,974	3	153,945	3	204,125	Þ	188,392	Þ	173,863	3	155,254	3	136,582
Net income per share allocated														
to common stockholders														
Basic	\$	1.72	\$	1.85	\$	2.46	\$	2.21	\$	1.99	\$	1.78	\$	1.52
Diluted		1.72		1.85		2.46		2.21		1.99		1.78		1.52
Cash dividends declared per														
share ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾		0.71		0.65		0.88		0.78		1.16		1.29		0.44

	Nine Mont Septem	 		Year Ended December 31,								
	2016	2015	2015		2014		2013		2012		2011	
				(in	thousands))						
Balance Sheet Data:												
Total Assets	\$ 441,342	\$ 397,419	\$ 384,788	\$	383,901	\$	441,589	\$	338,858	\$	327,868	
Total liabilities	139,177	137,602	125,143		133,834		157,072		99,736		91,598	
Redeemable												
noncontrolling interests	12,600											
Total stockholders' equity	289,565	259,817	259,645		250,067		284,517		239,122		236,270	
Average daily volume by product ⁽³⁾												
Equities	1,430	1.602	1,559		1,939		1,721		1.977		2,048	
Indexes	1,712	1,645	1,620		1,613		1,721		1,777		2,040	